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The Windsor Hotel located at 421 North Main in Garden City is 
one of the most distinctive works of Renaissance architecture in 
southwest Kansas. The four-story building, which has a basement, 
measures approximately 120 feet long, 100 feet wide, and 55 feet high. 
It features an entrance tower of an additional story at the northeast 
corner. I

The exterior walls are of native limestone and red bricks which 
were fired in a local kiln. The windows on the east facade are rectan­ 
gular with flat arched tops, clear glass, and wood frames. The 
arched lintels are cut stone and the sills are a combination of cut 
stone and brick. Brick pilasters flank each window, and. many of them 
have stone capitals superimposed at the second and third floor levels. 
A stamped metal eave and cornice covers the brick parapet on the 
east front. Seven small pinnacles rise- above the top of the parapet 
as extensions of the brick pilasters; evidence indicates that two 
additional pinnacles have been removed. The hotel has a flat tar roof.

The most distinctive feature of the hotel is the square tower 
over the main entrance at the northeast corner. Although the tower 
does not project outward from the building, it does project majestically 
upward. It has a hip roof with a flat top around which an ornamental 
iron railing is placed. A gabled dormer window projects from each 
of the four sides of the tower roof, and on the ridge of each is also 
an iron railing.

On the interior the main point of interest is the mezzanine 
lobby which runs north-south On the second floor. It extends upward 
for three stories and is topped by a huge skylight. On three sides 
the lobby walls are lined with balconies, and on the fourth side two 
long solid mahogany -stairways converge at the bottom. Rooms on each 
floor are arranged in two rows around the outside of the building; 
those on the interior open onto the central court created by the 
mezzanine lobby.

Originally the hotel had 125 guest rooms. After remodeling and 
modernizing there are presently 85 rooms. A portion of the first floor 
now houses some commercial enterprises and the fronts of these businesses 
have been altered with the use of aluminum frame doors and windows, 
green-painted brick, and blue and orange metal. From the second floor 
up the exterior of the building presents basically the j3ame appearance 
as it did originally.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Windsor Hotel in Garden City, sometimes referred to as the 
"Waldorf of theyPrairies," was built in 1887^88 by former buffalo 
hunter John^A^^Stevens on property he homesteaded in 1879. A 
business rivalry between Stevens and another pioneer settler, 
C. J. "Buffalo" Jones, who had just completed a hotel and business ) 
block, provided the incentive for construction of the 125-room hotel.

^Constructed of native stone and of brick made from a local, 
kiln,)the Winds/r Hotel cost approximately $100,000. J. H. Stevens 
and C. L. Thompson of Garden City designed and built the ^Efucture, 
beginning in March, 1887, and completing it by the spring of 1888. 

/ The hotel's most unusual feature is an inside court located in 
the center of the building on the second floor with a full-length 
skylight three stories above, 'in addition to providing lodging 
and meals for travelers, the hotel was used for banquets, balls 
and social gatherings and also served as the 1 headquarters for 
local cattlemen.' Guests could enter Steven's Opera House, which 
adjoined the hotel on the south, by an entrance through the Windsor 
court. Reportedly the largest' hotel between Denver arid Kansas City 
from the late 1880's to 1900, the Windsor was noted for its fine 
dining room, a reputation which lasted until the mid-1920's when 
meals were no longer served.

Stevens lost the hotel and opera house in 1893 when deteriorating 
economic conditions in the United States brought ruin to many 
western Kansas enterprises. Ownership of the Stevens property 
then passed to John E. Baker and a Mr. Inge, and later a partner­ 
ship of Baker and George Mack owned the holdings. In 1935 title 
to the hotel was transferred to Mrs. John Baker and later to her 
daughter, Mrs. Eva Sharer. The present owner, Bryant Garnand, 
purchased the building in 1944 and still uses part of the lower 
floor for a furniture store?; Raymond Baird has managed the hotel 
for 26 years.

The Windsor Hotel was one of the largest and most elegant 
hotels in western Kansas at the turn of the century. Serving as 
headquarters for many land and cattle transactions and also as 
a community center, it has had an important part in the develop­ 
ment of the Garden/City area. *The Windsor Hotel is an excellent 
example of Renaissance architecture in Kansas and is one of the 
few outstanding early western Kansas hotel buildings. It is
particularly noteworthy because of its large size and its three-story 
inside court.
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